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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Good afternoon,

          3  everyone.  I just want to state before I get into my

          4  opening statement that is if there's anyone that's

          5  willing to testify on these items before the Housing

          6  and Buildings Committee today to please see the

          7  Sergeant- at- Arms and sign up.

          8                 Joined with me at this point are my

          9  colleagues, Tony Avella from Queens and the sponsor

         10  of the bill before us today, Jimmy Oddo, the

         11  minority leader of the Council from Staten Island. I

         12  am Erik Martin Dilan.  I'm the Chair of the Housing

         13  and Buildings Committee.

         14                 Today the Committee will conduct a

         15  hearing on Proposed Int. 33- A, a Local Law to amend

         16  the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         17  relation to the regulation of general contractors.

         18  This bill would require the registration of general

         19  contractors operating within the City of New York to

         20  register. Such registration would be subject to

         21  renewal every two years. Criteria imposed under the

         22  bill provisions for registration as a General

         23  Contractor include certain general liability

         24  insurance requirements, as well as warranty

         25  requirements.  The bill would also allow for seizure
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          2  of any equipment and vehicles used by for any

          3  unlicensed or unregistered activity.

          4                 Since a house is one of the largest

          5  and most expensive investments made by individuals,

          6  having the knowledge that the contractor who built

          7  these homes are registered and insured can offer a

          8  greater level of accountability in the quality of

          9  the workmanship that is needed throughout the

         10  duration of the development or improvement of these

         11  buildings.

         12                 The Committee expects to hear

         13  testimony from representatives of the Department of

         14  Buildings, real estate professionals including

         15  developers, contractors, and other persons

         16  interested in this legislation.

         17                 At this time, I'm going to turn over

         18  to the sponsor of the bill, Council Member James

         19  Oddo for a brief description of the legislation he's

         20  introducing today, as well as an opening statement.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I just want to

         22  thank you and your staff for the work on this piece

         23  of legislation.  We actually, in this very room, I

         24  believe, back in June of 2005 had a hearing on what

         25  was then Intro. 513, which was an earlier
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          2  incarnation of this bill.  I think we have a better

          3  bill before us today.

          4                 Essentially, what we're trying to do

          5  is, as you said, protect consumers when they make

          6  what is likely the largest investment of their

          7  lifetime, buying a one or two or three- family home.

          8    If you look at what the City of New York regulates

          9  today or licenses today, motion picture operators,

         10  scale dealers, scrap metal processors, it's counter-

         11  intuitive that we don't regulate the people who are

         12  building these homes.

         13                 I think that this bill could be a

         14  friend to the industry, and I think no builder out

         15  there who's worth his salt should be concerned about

         16  this bill.  What we've seen on Staten Island, and I

         17  think in parts of Queens and Brooklyn and the Bronx,

         18  with the overdevelopment boom that everyone has

         19  gotten into the industry, bakers, candlestick

         20  makers, everybody thought that they could make a

         21  quick buck by becoming a builder.  Unfortunately,

         22  sometimes we speak with too broad a brush when we

         23  say builders did this or builders are bad in this

         24  way because these aren't people who have been

         25  building for 30 years on Staten Island.  These are
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          2  people who are getting in and getting out and trying

          3  to get rich quickly.

          4                 Right now if we were to ask our

          5  colleagues, or even ask the Bloomberg Administration

          6  say, well, how many people are out there engaged in

          7  this practice of building one and two, three family

          8  homes?  None of us could give an accurate read. We

          9  don't know who's out there.  What this bill does is

         10  take admittedly a small step but a step in

         11  identifying those people who are doing this,

         12  registering them and putting a process in place

         13  where we can inject some sanity into this industry

         14  and prevent the bad guys from continuing to engage

         15  in this business.

         16                 What has happened on Staten Island is

         17  Joe Smith is a bad guy, he's a bad builder, and he

         18  operates under A Corporation, and he builds some

         19  shoddy work, and he kind of disappears and he kind

         20  of re- invents himself.  And we have to get a better

         21  understanding as to exactly who is out there.

         22                 When we do find people who are doing

         23  the wrong thing, have a process that has some teeth

         24  to it to take away either the tools that they're

         25  using, and I use tools literally and figuratively,
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          2  and stop them from creating tomorrow's headache for

          3  our constituents and eventually for us.  We'll get

          4  into some of the details of the bill.

          5                 I'm sure it's not the perfect bill,

          6  and I'm anxious to hear from the industry what their

          7  recommendations are, and I'm anxious to hear from

          8  the Department of Buildings what their thoughts are.

          9    I want to thank them.  Frankly, the last time they

         10  came and they testified against the bill in 2005, it

         11  was disappointing, but I think as a reflection the

         12  direction of our overall relationship, and I'm

         13  hopeful that we can work together, find a common

         14  ground with the Administration and the industry and

         15  craft a bill that protects all of our constituents.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, thank you.

         18  I just want to make a brief statement that there are

         19  multiple committees going on, so there will be

         20  members coming in and coming out during these

         21  proceedings.  Before I turn it over to the

         22  Department of Buildings, I would ask that if anyone

         23  has a cell phone on them, please put it on vibrate,

         24  and if there is a need for private conversation, if

         25  it could please be taken outside of the Committee
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          2  Hearing.

          3                 With that said, I'd like to turn

          4  these proceedings over to the Department of

          5  Buildings.  If you could just introduce yourself for

          6  the record and the woman accompanying you, and then

          7  you can go right into your testimony.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          9  My name is Bob LiMandri.  I'm First Deputy

         10  Commissioner of Buildings.  With me today I have

         11  Deborah Glicken (phonetic) from my General Counsel

         12  Office, who is next to me.  To her left, Mark

         13  Sinabria (phonetic).  He is in charge of internal

         14  audits and discipline for the Department.  I have

         15  also two other members of my staff with me, Susan

         16  Long, who's the Director of Licensing, and Marietta

         17  Cremetis (phonetic).

         18                 Thank you, Chairman Oddo and Dilan

         19  and the Housing and Buildings Committee.  I'm glad

         20  to testify today in support of Intro No. 33A, which

         21  amends the Administrative Code in relation to the

         22  regulation and registration of general contractors.

         23  The Department's mission is to protect public safety

         24  and facilitate safe and compliant development.  The

         25  proposed bill accomplishes both.  Intro. 33A
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          2  provides the Department with a new tool allowing us

          3  to strengthen our direct oversight over this portion

          4  of the industry and increase penalties for those

          5  engaged in unlicensed or unregistered work, as well

          6  as promotes public safety by adding provisions with

          7  the purpose of preventing inferior homes being

          8  built.

          9                 Currently, there are no registration

         10  requirements for general contractors as there are

         11  for home improvement contractors.  A home

         12  improvement contractor is defined in New York City's

         13  Home Improvement Business Law as anyone who owns,

         14  operates, maintains, conducts, controls or transacts

         15  a home improvement business.  The Home Improvement

         16  Business Law defines home improvement as the

         17  construction, repair, replacement, remodeling,

         18  alteration, conversion, rehabilitation, renovation,

         19  modernization, improvement or addition to any land

         20  or building or that part of the land or building

         21  used or designated to be used as a residence or

         22  dwelling place.

         23                 Home improvement provisions generally

         24  refer to existing homes.  Examples of work include,

         25  but are not limited to, the construction,
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          2  replacement or improvement of driveways, swimming

          3  pools, terraces, patios, landscaping, fences,

          4  porches, garages, basements and other improvements

          5  to structures or upon land that is adjacent to a

          6  home or apartment building.

          7                 As we understand it, Intro. 33 would

          8  apply to the construction of new one, two and three-

          9  family homes.  This legislation would require

         10  contractors of one, two and three- family homes and

         11  their principals who own more than 10 percent of the

         12  company to register with the Department.  The bill

         13  also provides for a limited background check, which

         14  we envision would include checks by our internal

         15  Investigations Unit, the Building Special

         16  Investigations Unit that we have with the Department

         17  of Investigation, and a VENDEX check and a Better

         18  Business Bureau check, and of course a check by

         19  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         20                 The bill also imposes a requirement

         21  that these contractors have general liability

         22  insurance in the amount of no less than $1 million

         23  per occurrence, mirroring our current requirements

         24  for licensees, and that they provide warranties as

         25  required by Sections 777A and B of the State and
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          2  General Business Law.

          3                 We believe the incorporation of the

          4  state warranty provisions are a positive feature of

          5  this legislation, as it allows for an avenue of

          6  enforcement in addition to civil court.  The

          7  proposed provision allows the Department to utilize

          8  the fact that a warranty was not issued to a new

          9  homeowner as an additional premise for revocation or

         10  suspension of a registration with the Department,

         11  therefore protecting the citizens in the City of New

         12  York.

         13                 Certainly warranties and the

         14  restitution that they can provide to homeowners are

         15  very important.  However, it is important that the

         16  Department can ensure that the rules and regulations

         17  are followed.  Hand in hand with the ability for

         18  more oversight comes the need to complement that

         19  oversight with the appropriate penalties.

         20                 Intro. 33A provides the seizure of

         21  tools and vans of companies operating without a

         22  registration or license.  As drafted, this penalty

         23  applies to both unregistered general contractors and

         24  other entities performing unauthorized work that

         25  requires a license by the Department, for example,
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          2  licensed plumbers or electricians. This penalty is

          3  similar to existing seizure provisions found at a

          4  number of City agencies including the Department of

          5  Consumer Affairs and the Department of Sanitation.

          6                 In light of this legislation, the

          7  Department conducted several meetings with these

          8  agencies in order to understand their implementation

          9  of their seizure provisions and the resources

         10  necessary to implement them.  The Department is

         11  currently still in the process of assessing how to

         12  implement these particular seizure provisions, as

         13  there are numerous operational issues that will be

         14  need to resolved, however not something that we

         15  can't handle.

         16                 The bill also provides for hearings

         17  to be held at the Office of Administration Trials

         18  and Hearings, or OATH, for disciplinary actions.

         19  The Commissioner will have the power to refuse to

         20  issue or renew or, after a hearing at OATH, suspend

         21  or revoke the registration of a general contractor

         22  for various violations, including but not limited

         23  to, building code violations, failure to complete

         24  projects and fraud.  Possible penalties include a

         25  fine not to exceed $5,000 or suspension or
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          2  revocation.

          3                 A person who operated a general

          4  contracting business without registration or

          5  knowingly violated the provisions of the bill, or

          6  any rules connected with it, shall be guilty of a

          7  misdemeanor and on conviction shall be punishable by

          8  a fine of $5,000 to $10,000 and/or imprisonment for

          9  not more than six months.

         10                 In addition, civil penalties of

         11  $5,000 per violation may be imposed for any

         12  violation of the provisions of this bill.

         13                 There are some questions that still

         14  need to be answered and resolved, but the bill is

         15  the step in the right direction, and we look forward

         16  to working with the Council to achieve its intended

         17  result.  I certainly will be happy to answer any

         18  questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         20  Before we get to the questions, I will just

         21  acknowledge a few of my colleagues who have arrived.

         22    Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens, Council

         23  Member Joel Rivera from the Bronx, as well as

         24  Council Member Lou Fidler from Brooklyn.  At this

         25  time I will let the bill sponsor open with
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          2  questioning, and then we will take requests from any

          3  of my colleagues that have questions.  He'll be

          4  followed by Council Member Comrie.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.  On page three when you talk about the

          7  limited background check, you're talking about the

          8  Building Special Investigations Unit, VENDEX, Better

          9  Business, et cetera.  Specifically, what would you

         10  be looking for in terms of the background check?

         11  Those entities investigate what exactly?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         13  We utilize as part of background checks typically we

         14  utilize, for example, our Buildings Special

         15  Investigations Unit, they go through and see if

         16  there have been complaints to the Department

         17  directly about a particular vendor or contractor.

         18  Then they investigate based on that.  That's the

         19  kind of information that we think is important

         20  through the registration process.  If found that we

         21  actually find a problem, that's documented.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  So people right

         23  now currently are reaching out to these entities

         24  saying I had a home built by so and so, and that's

         25  documented currently?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          3  The best example is for licensed architects and

          4  engineers, this happens routinely.  They'll complain

          5  to our Building Special Investigations Unit, which

          6  is done in cooperation with DOI for things of the

          7  nature of, I hired an architect, but he didn't

          8  fulfill his contract, and they want to make a

          9  complaint.  They substantiate the complaint, and if

         10  they do, they send that to the state, for example.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay, so I am

         12  an applicant, and I want to register with DOB once

         13  this bill is implemented, and your various units do

         14  a limited background check, and they find that I

         15  have a pretty checkered past, so at that point you

         16  could then say, you know what?  We're not going

         17  allow you to register, so you then at that point

         18  can't engage lawfully in the practice of building

         19  one, two and three- family homes?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         21  Our goal would be is to be able to weigh and come up

         22  with some criteria of when we would say no, but the

         23  object would be if you can't register with us, you

         24  can't pull a permit and therefore you can't build in

         25  the City of New York, so that would be the
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          2  objective.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  So we have a

          4  couple of bites at the apple, really.  One is sort

          5  of a gate to stop them from getting into the

          6  profession from doing it, and then secondly, if they

          7  are in the profession doing things wrong, you can

          8  then theoretically pull their, I don't want to say

          9  license --

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         11  Registration.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Registration

         13  and then they can't continue in that.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         15  Then they can't continue to be a registered builder,

         16  and so therefore that they can't pull permits, and

         17  certainly building a new home it's kind of hard to

         18  under the radar as opposed to a home improvement

         19  contractor who builds a new kitchen in somebody's

         20  home.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  The issue of

         22  the warranty.  We are not going deeper, if you will,

         23  than with the state.  Our warranty provision isn't

         24  in excess of what the state asks for.  Are we

         25  allowed, or are we preempted from making a stronger
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          2  warranty provision?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          4  We're preempted, but the way we view the warranty

          5  provision in this bill that you've proposed is, did

          6  the contractor give you, the homeowner, a warranty,

          7  yes or no?  If he gave you a limited warranty, as

          8  per the state, did he tell you what those

          9  limitations were, yes or no?  If he didn't, then

         10  that would be grounds for that homeowner to go to

         11  civil court to get a judgment against that builder.

         12  Once that builder starts to have a track record of

         13  judgments, that becomes a premise for the Department

         14  to say we have a pattern, this person shouldn't be

         15  registered with the Department.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  You heard my

         17  opening statement about we really don't have --

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         19  Our arms around the number.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.  Do you

         21  have a rough estimate as to how many people

         22  routinely are building one, two and three- family

         23  homes in the City?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         25  We have grappled with the number as well.  We do
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          2  know, as Marietta slides in front of me, we do know

          3  that the number of buildings that we do construct,

          4  but generally speaking, we think that the number is

          5  around 5,000 contractors that are going to fall in

          6  this realm.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Now, there was

          8  an article recently in the Times about sort of off

          9  the book construction jobs, and there was a study

         10  that was released.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         12  In the Times?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  In the New York

         14  Times, sort of detailing the widespread nature of

         15  illegal practices in the residential construction

         16  industry. Can this bill speak to that?  Is there a

         17  connection between what we're trying to do with this

         18  bill and that issue?  Are they in the same universe?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         20  I think the way the Department sees this bill is

         21  we're going down a road, and we're trying to get our

         22  arms around regulation in this industry.  So the

         23  first step is, let's look at the guy in charge,

         24  let's look at him and he or she and what they

         25  control.  All of the subcontractors is really where

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  you're going who work for that primary contractor.

          3  The focus of that article was, and there was an

          4  article actually talking about California currently

          5  about the number of people that are out of work that

          6  are not really on the radar.  When you go there, I

          7  think that is not addressed in this bill.  It's the

          8  next step, which is who's on the job site?  Is there

          9  a sub to that main builder?  And I think that's the

         10  next step.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well, I would

         12  just repeat again, Mr. Chairman, and I don't want to

         13  monopolize the time, but I mean this was intended to

         14  be, and is intended to be, a consumer protection

         15  bill, and actually, the one other thing I wanted to

         16  get on the record is that when the Mayor created the

         17  Staten Island Growth Management Taskforce, this was

         18  one of the issues that was charged to that group.  I

         19  think each of us at this table can tell our own

         20  horror stories of constituents who bought homes only

         21  to have foundations cracked within literally months.

         22                 I would just again thank the

         23  Administration and DOB, and I'm anxious to hear from

         24  the industry.  Whatever refinements we need to make,

         25  I'm willing to keep an open mind, but I think at the
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          2  end of the day, again, the notion that we don't in

          3  the year 2007 have a really good grasp on just how

          4  many people are building, what again is the biggest

          5  investment in people's lifetimes, I think calls out

          6  for action.  I'm grateful that I think we're at the

          7  point finally where everyone is relatively on the

          8  same page.  I think we just need to tighten the bill

          9  up and hopefully move it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Oddo, and that's actually a perfect

         12  segue way into the next member that will have some

         13  questions.  He also happens to be the Chair of the

         14  Consumer Affairs Committee, Council Member Leroy

         15  Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  I want to congratulate Chairman Oddo for

         18  bringing this bill forth and trying to deal with the

         19  issues with general contractors.

         20                 Mr. Limandri, am I mangling that

         21  badly?  Okay, thank you.  Right now the Department

         22  of Consumer Affairs does take registered

         23  contractors, home improvement contractors.  They do

         24  not register general contractors, or what makes the

         25  difference in your mind?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          3  Primarily the difference the way the home

          4  improvement contractor law was written is that if

          5  you're an owner of a premise, and you want to do

          6  work within your home, you want to do a bathroom

          7  renovation, you want to put in some windows, you go

          8  hire a contractor that just does those limited types

          9  of work.  Or if you wanted to put an extension on

         10  your home, even that far.  But if I were a landlord,

         11  and I were renovating those apartments within the

         12  building, and I was doing kitchen renovation work,

         13  that would not be considered a home improvement

         14  contractor.              So in this case, this is

         15  one and two, three- family homes.  You want to

         16  engage in constructing a new home.  Those would be

         17  basically delivering a new warranty on new

         18  construction.  So that's the major difference.  If

         19  you would, home improvement contractors are on

         20  existing homes doing small projects within the home.

         21    This is brand new homes in the City.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, so

         23  these general contractors are not now registered

         24  with the Buildings Department in any form?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:
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          2  We don't register contractors.  We do have the

          3  requirement to provide insurance, but that is not a

          4  requirement to take out one permit versus another.

          5  And we don't have a lot of detail.  I think the one

          6  thing that this law also provides is, as we all

          7  know, there are abilities to hide behind the

          8  corporate veil, so this law is intended to look at

          9  the corporation, but also the principals, and the

         10  principals are the key to the success of this bill,

         11  which is you can't just look at the name of the

         12  company.  So you could have several companies open

         13  and operating and doing shoddy work, but if you're

         14  the same owner, that's where we want to get to, and

         15  that's how this is different as well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So overall,

         17  you're in favor of the bill, but you just have some

         18  technical issues with it, no major policy issues, or

         19  no major issues regarding the possibility of

         20  implementation of it and figuring out, I think, what

         21  you said about seizure and that type of issue?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         23  Yes, we have some operational hurdles that we'll

         24  have to work through, and there may be things that

         25  come up in this Hearing that I didn't identify that
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          2  will be brought to your attention that we'll have to

          3  figure out if we need to make some solutions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I really

          5  wanted to stay to hear all of the issues also, but

          6  I'm sneaking into Council Member Oddo's district to

          7  speak to some students at 245, with his permission,

          8  so I'm not going to be able to stay, but I'll

          9  definitely be back in touch with him and the Chair

         10  to ferret through these issues.  I'm actually

         11  excited about the possibility to give consumers a

         12  better quality of knowledge base and definitely a

         13  reference base when they're dealing with home

         14  building, so I want to thank Council Member Oddo and

         15  to you and to the Buildings Department Commissioner

         16  for embracing the concepts of this bill. I hope we

         17  can get to a point where all parties can agree on

         18  something that will protect consumers in the City.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         21  Great, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         23  Council Member Fidler?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.  I think it was in my first few months
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          2  as Council Member when Council Member Oddo and I and

          3  then Councilwoman Ivette Clarke met with

          4  Commissioner Lancaster on the very issue of

          5  licensing, VENDEXing general contractors and

          6  developers in the City, and the Commissioner

          7  promised us that action was coming.  I'm pleased to

          8  see that Councilman Oddo has introduced this

          9  legislation because the action wasn't coming, and I

         10  just appreciate the fact that the Buildings

         11  Department is supportive of this legislation.

         12                 I recognize that there are many,

         13  many, many things that we need to tighten up or

         14  consider as we balance the need not to end building

         15  in the City, but to protect consumers.  I just don't

         16  want another five years to pass, and I want to begin

         17  by expressing that concern.  I think now that we've

         18  got this issue on the front burner, I think we need

         19  to turn up the heat and make this legislation as

         20  bulletproof as it possibly can.

         21                 Having said that, as I lawyer, I'm

         22  not necessarily proud of the fact that it's our job

         23  in private world to try and find ways around

         24  legislation like this for our clients.  So I am

         25  concerned both with the people who operate this
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          2  business above the level of general contractors, and

          3  those who operate below the level of general

          4  contractors.  I'm also very concerned about

          5  ownership being placed in family members of people

          6  as well.

          7                 In terms of developers, we know that

          8  companies form a development corporation for the

          9  purpose of building a series of homes.  That was the

         10  particular issue that brought us to Commissioner

         11  Lancaster.  There were a series of homes that were

         12  built in Canarsie, but never to the point where they

         13  were able to get a permit and C of O because the

         14  developer disappeared, probably formed a different

         15  development corporation and went on to his next

         16  project.

         17                 So, one, how do we define and

         18  regulate developers? And, two, how do we define

         19  subcontractors on the other end?  At what point does

         20  a general contractor become a sub?  Because,

         21  truthfully, they are sometimes a distinction without

         22  a difference, particularly if there's a developer

         23  involved, so that we can capture all of those

         24  entities with this legislation.  How do we do that?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:
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          2  Well, I think you bring up a good point. I think

          3  there are a couple.  I'll try to address all of

          4  them, but the first is how do you stop a loophole

          5  with this sham corporation?  As I indicated before,

          6  even if a company sets up that they're going to

          7  develop just for this one property, they have to

          8  indicate for us the principals that own more than 10

          9  percent.  So the way to make this efficient is to do

         10  what we've done in many other parts of the agency,

         11  which is to make it completely, one transparent, but

         12  to do it electronically.

         13                 So the idea here is that you utilize

         14  technology to do a lot of the hand work that

         15  normally you would do in the past. So this is the

         16  vehicle in which we're going to register people.  We

         17  are going to utilize the electronic format to catch

         18  people as well, and to see the synergies of where

         19  the same principals come up over and over again.

         20                 That's sort of the key because,

         21  you're right, it is in an aggressive enforcement

         22  nightmare if we've got thousands of projects going

         23  on on a regular basis, 138,000 permits a year, and

         24  how do you distill out of that all of the same names

         25  that are behind the corporations that are doing all
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          2  the bad things, as the Chairman indicated?  So the

          3  idea here is just to utilize the technology behind

          4  the scenes to be able to find that.  That would be

          5  our strategy.

          6                 The second piece is you identified

          7  subcontractors. I would submit to you that we are

          8  going down a path which we've never gone down

          9  before, which is to say there are other contractors

         10  in the world other than plumbers and electricians

         11  that do work on one, two and three- family home

         12  sites.  I would suggest that we look at those other

         13  subcontractors differently in that we take them on

         14  solely.  In other words, we look at the big picture

         15  first, and then to go down into the subs, and not to

         16  do it all at once.  We want to be successful in

         17  implementing what you deliver for us.  We are

         18  excited about consistently getting more personnel,

         19  but we're also excited about getting more

         20  enforcement mechanisms to be able to regulate.  We

         21  don't want to overregulate, but we also have to do

         22  it so that we can be successful, so I would do it in

         23  a phased manner.

         24                 So there are many subcontractors that

         25  show up on a job site at any given time.  Today
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          2  we're looking at the guy in charge and the money

          3  behind it.  When we look at enforcement, and we've

          4  been doing this for two years now, trying to drive

          5  home the enforcement initiatives, it all comes back

          6  to the guy with the money.

          7                 So, for example, serving the stop

          8  work order to the principal who owns the building is

          9  the way, and putting them on notice, and then

         10  thinking that we may actually bring criminal action

         11  against them, that seems to get people's attention,

         12  which is a different tactic than we did three or

         13  four years ago.  So we're trying to find the

         14  financial line, so we'll start at the top, and

         15  certainly the subs are someone that we need to get

         16  to.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Would you

         18  include officers of corporation as someone who needs

         19  to be VENDEXed?  I'm not sure if the bill does.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         21  I'm not sure the bill does.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  If you were

         23  writing the bill, would you?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         25  It says officers.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Okay, and how

          3  do you get around the oldest lawyer trick, which is

          4  putting it in the significant other or spouse's

          5  name?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          7  Well, we have a house on Manhattan Beach that that

          8  happens all the time where the ownership goes

          9  between the wife and the husband, and that's been a

         10  real challenge. I would say that, again, we would go

         11  down the list and use technology to be able to

         12  bridge the gap, which is to say we can't be

         13  everywhere, and we use technology to route out, just

         14  like the IRS does.  Now you can electronically file,

         15  and all of a sudden now they can do a lot of the

         16  calculations on- line and all of a sudden now they

         17  can do their job a lot more efficiently, and we're

         18  doing the same thing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Just in

         20  conclusion, I want to go back to my first point,

         21  which is that we really need to come to conclusions

         22  quickly, but at the same time being mindful of the

         23  fact that we're about to impose yet another layer of

         24  bureaucracy on building in the City, and I think we

         25  need to be mindful of that. Because I don't think
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          2  it's our intention to stop lawful building in the

          3  City of New York, but by the same token there have

          4  been egregious violations that have been going on

          5  here that we need to resolve.

          6                 So the final portion of this is

          7  making sure that when we have crafted a bill that

          8  you think you can enforce, that we all think comes

          9  to the appropriate measure of consumer protection,

         10  what staffing you will need at that time to be able

         11  to do it effectively and efficiently, so that we are

         12  not turning to the contractors of the City of New

         13  York and saying, those of you who are operating

         14  lawfully can't operate because we're strangled.

         15                 So that is very much part of this

         16  discussion as far as I'm concerned.  I certainly

         17  hope that we're going to be able to resolve this

         18  legislation before we pass a budget in June, and

         19  that at the same time we pass the budget in June, we

         20  give you the personnel necessary to efficiently

         21  enforce this.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         23  Council Member Fidler.  We've also been joined by

         24  Council Member Jackson from Manhattan and Council

         25  Member White from Queens.  I have a few questions.
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          2  I'm going to jump in where Council Member Fidler

          3  left off.

          4                 How much funds does DOB anticipate

          5  needing in the implementation of this bill?  Or can

          6  it be done from your existing budget?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          8  We are working on the budget right now.  We believe

          9  that we'll need a couple of investigators.  Those

         10  are the guys that are going to be going out in the

         11  field and sort of doing the ground work.  We'll

         12  probably need a few attorneys and some

         13  administrative people, as well as some OTPS for IT

         14  initiatives, basically being able to build the

         15  interface between them, because what we're going to

         16  want to do is do a lot of this on- line instead of

         17  making people come in.  They'll eventually have to

         18  come in and show us some paperwork, and show us that

         19  they're alive.  It's things like that, but the idea

         20  is to be able to do it live and electronically, so

         21  we will need some OTPS, and we'll be able to get to

         22  you pretty quickly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Do you have a

         24  rough idea about how much it costs, or it's too

         25  preliminary, and you'd have to work?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          3  If you would, I mean, we could probably get it to

          4  you in a couple of days.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  We'll be

          6  looking forward to them.  You mentioned earlier in

          7  your either statement or testimony that you had some

          8  concerns with some of the technical issues of the

          9  bill.  Could you maybe just please explain what

         10  those are?  I know you touched on seizure a little

         11  bit, and you touched on warranty a little bit.  Can

         12  you just restate them for me?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         14  Sure.  With seizure, what we just want to do is we

         15  want to make sure that we can efficiently implement.

         16    I don't want to get into the seizure business, so

         17  it just is a matter of figuring out how to contract

         18  out the seizure provision.  In other words, we've

         19  got the flow down about how we would actually

         20  identify the contractors, and when we get out there.

         21  It's just the provision of who actually tows them,

         22  where do they go?  Working through with OATH to

         23  making sure that we can do an expediting hearings,

         24  things of that nature.  So in the seizure provision

         25  that's really where our focus is operationally.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, so I guess

          3  the question is, obviously, DOB doesn't have the

          4  capacity to come out and take away vehicles.  It

          5  would either be the Police Department or the

          6  marshals, so all that is still kind of in flux and

          7  needs to be worked out?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          9  Well, what we've done is we've done a lot of work

         10  with HIC, I'm sorry, TCA, talking with them and

         11  going through with them how they do their business

         12  and trying to figure out if it makes sense to

         13  contract it out versus using an external agency

         14  other than ourselves, but we're not going to get

         15  into that business.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, so private

         17  companies is also an option?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         19  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I just want to

         21  ditto some of the statements that were made by Lou

         22  Fidler, who has since left.  I also want to make

         23  sure that we put together the best package possible

         24  and want to do so without choking responsible

         25  contractors, so I want to make sure that as we go
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          2  forward in passing this bill that we don't have any

          3  unintended consequences that may stop responsible

          4  development, and I guess I look forward working with

          5  your office and the sponsor of the bill as we go

          6  forward.

          7                 If there are no more questions, I'd

          8  like to thank you for coming in and providing your

          9  testimony this afternoon, and again we look forward

         10  to working with you on this issue.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         12  Great, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  At this time, if

         14  there are any other groups that are interested in

         15  speaking on this item, please see the Sergeant- at-

         16  Arms to fill out an appearance card.  The next group

         17  I'll call will consist of two individuals.  I have

         18  Robert Altman, who is coming to speak in favor of

         19  the bill, and I have a Mr. Lawrence H. Brinkner.  If

         20  you could please come forward, and if you have any

         21  written testimony, please give it to the Sergeant-

         22  at Arms.  You can begin in any order.

         23                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         24  is Robert Altman.  I am the legislative consultant

         25  to the Building Industry Association of New York
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          2  City and the Queens and Bronx Building Association.

          3  Our Associations are chapters of the New York State

          4  Builders Association and represent builders and

          5  contractors in the Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens and

          6  Staten Island.

          7                 I am here today to testify on Intro.

          8  33A.  First, our Associations would like to applaud

          9  the efforts of the Council in seeking to bring

         10  rational regulation to the building industry.

         11  Registration or licensing of builders will help

         12  ensure that the public learns which builders have

         13  solid records and which need weeding out.  Bad

         14  builders are not only problematic for your

         15  constituents, but because these problem builders are

         16  often lumped in with our members, they are also

         17  problematic for us.

         18                 To that end, we would like to assist

         19  the Council in crafting a bill that would be

         20  beneficial for its constituents, beneficial to the

         21  City and beneficial to our industry.

         22                 Second, while we applaud the general

         23  framework of Intro No. 33A, we believe at this time

         24  it suffers from technical flaws that can be

         25  corrected.  Moreover, some provisions are not
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          2  necessary and others can be strengthened.

          3                 For example, while people may believe

          4  we're preempted from going with a stronger warranty

          5  provision, we would like to take another look in

          6  this area to see if something more can be done.

          7                 Also, we believe the definition may

          8  need some tweaking in the respect that we believe it

          9  might pick up people that the Council does not

         10  intend to pick up and leave out some people that the

         11  Council intends to, in fact, have within the purview

         12  of the legislation.

         13                 We believe that the confiscation

         14  provision needs another look.  It may not be

         15  required in this instance.  It has some situations

         16  where we may have problematic enforcement issues.

         17                 Our Association believes that the

         18  Commissioner's discretion is always a good thing to

         19  allow for with respect to punishing violations.

         20  Parts of the bill seem to mandate action by the

         21  Commissioner upon a violation.  We would like the

         22  Commissioner to be able to take into account

         23  extenuating circumstances when evaluating

         24  punishments.

         25                 We also believe that in the respect
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          2  that this bill is an attempt to professionalize the

          3  industry, that there should be some continuing

          4  education requirements.  And with respect to

          5  disciplinary actions, we would look to the situation

          6  like the Plumbing Board where there is review by an

          7  association, a group of peers, to determine what

          8  punishments may be appropriate and whether someone

          9  should lose their license.

         10                 We notice that the bill is for

         11  regulating builders of one to three family homes.

         12  We may want to actually have it more than just that.

         13    Some people may want to keep that at that level.

         14  We've looked at, in fact, increasing the purview

         15  here.

         16                 We think there should be appropriate

         17  judicial review of actions under the law.

         18                 We thank you for this opportunity to

         19  testify.  Our Association looks forward to working

         20  with the Council to craft a bill that will be

         21  beneficial for its constituents, beneficial to the

         22  City and beneficial to our industry.  I would be

         23  happy to answer any questions that anybody may have,

         24  or one of the associations I represent is here today

         25  and have them testify first as well, either way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'd like to hear

          3  from the next witness, and then if there are any

          4  questions, we'll get to them after.

          5                 MR. BRINKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman

          6  and Members of the Committee.  My name is Lawrence

          7  Brinker, and I'm the Executive Officer of the

          8  Building Industry Association of New York City.

          9  Chartered more than 40 years ago, we are the

         10  Brooklyn and Staten Island local chapter of the

         11  National Association of Home Builders. Our

         12  membership consists of builder members, associated

         13  building tradesmen, building material suppliers and

         14  financial service companies that serve the building

         15  industry.  Our members primarily build one to five-

         16  family homes, small commercial structures and low-

         17  rise buildings.  On behalf of that membership, I

         18  thank the Committee for this opportunity to comment

         19  on proposed Introduction No. 33A.

         20                 First off, we'd like to commend

         21  Councilman Oddo and his colleagues for taking this

         22  important and necessary first step toward contractor

         23  licensing for New York City.  We fully support that

         24  goal, and we are ready to work with the Councilman

         25  and the Committee to develop an effective licensing
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          2  program that protects the public health, safety and

          3  welfare, but also guards against incompetent or

          4  dishonest contractors that provide unsafe, unstable

          5  or short- lived products or services.

          6                 The proposal before us, while

          7  providing some significant after- the- fact

          8  penalties for wrongdoing, does not address what the

          9  essential element necessary to protect the public

         10  interest.  We contend that requiring a minimum level

         11  demonstrated competency before one is granted the

         12  privilege of building a home is the paramount

         13  principle for consumer protection.

         14                 The proposal under consideration does

         15  not require that the general contractor possess any

         16  basic education or experience to register.  We think

         17  it should.  There are no minimum standards of

         18  competency or continuing education requirements to

         19  obtain or continue to exercise the privilege of

         20  being a general contractor.  We think there should

         21  be such requirements.

         22                 We believe that at a minimum any

         23  contractor registration or licensing law must

         24  address technical expertise, experience and

         25  education, business management knowledge and

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  financial responsibility.  For any license or

          3  program to be effective, a certain level of

          4  competency for applicants must be established and

          5  demanded.

          6                 The majority of the states of the

          7  United States have enacted contractor licensing laws

          8  that are working.  Although the State of New York

          9  has yet to act in this area of the law, some

         10  examples of successful programs are the State of New

         11  Jersey that requires registration and warranty, the

         12  State of Connecticut that requires registration and

         13  payment into a state building fund, and the states

         14  of North Carolina and South Carolina that require

         15  passage of a written exam, registration and proof of

         16  financial responsibility and, my personal favorite,

         17  the State of Florida that requires passage of a

         18  written exam, various education and experience

         19  requirements and proof of financial responsibility

         20  before one can build in the State.

         21                 We ought to pay attention to these

         22  examples and not just construct a code section that

         23  waits to punish wrongdoers but instead sets out

         24  reasonable, professional standards for contractors

         25  so that the fly- by- night, shoddy contractor that
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          2  increases the risk that the consuming public will

          3  receive an inferior product is minimized.  Thank you

          4  again for providing me this opportunity to make our

          5  views known, and I want to say that we are committed

          6  with every fiber of our Association being to raising

          7  the level of professionalism in our industry, and we

          8  hope that you are too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I just thought

         10  that your testimonies were very, very compelling and

         11  interesting.  It's not often that builders

         12  essentially come in and say that a bill that

         13  regulates builders isn't strong enough.  I don't

         14  know if I've ever seen that before.  Council Member

         15  Oddo?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I would like to

         17  just voice my appreciation for not only the content

         18  of the testimony, but, frankly, its tone.  As I said

         19  earlier, I'm committed to having you gentlemen sit

         20  at the table with the Chairman and I and the

         21  Administration to find as best as we can common

         22  ground.  I'm very appreciative of the tone.

         23                 I said earlier, and I truly believe

         24  it, that the good builders out there should welcome

         25  this because, as is the case with politicians, we
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          2  all get grouped in together and spoken about in a

          3  general term, and I know that pisses me off when it

          4  happens, so I can imagine how it works for you.

          5                 Mr. Brinker, I just want to ask you,

          6  the examples that you gave of tougher laws sort of

          7  on the front end are actually acts of the state

          8  legislatures.  Are you aware of municipalities that

          9  you could point us to where we could sort of look at

         10  their language and if it's good, steal their ideas?

         11  Because sometimes, as we said earlier, we're

         12  preempted so often as a Council, as a municipal

         13  legislator, preempted by the state.  And we'll look

         14  at some these.  Some of these I think we looked at

         15  already, but we'll look at the others.  If you know

         16  any municipalities, I would love to look at those.

         17                 MR. BRINKER:  Certainly.  First of

         18  all, in the absence of the state law, presuming that

         19  the Charter will authorize this, and I believe it

         20  will for New York City, you're welcome to fill that

         21  vacuum.  Given the size and the scope and the

         22  population of New York City, you're even bigger than

         23  some of the states that I've mentioned that have

         24  these laws.

         25                 State regulation has been sort of the
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          2  norm, but I think Chicago has some code sections

          3  that you might want to take a look at and also Los

          4  Angeles.  What has happened in some of the cities

          5  I've looked at, the cities have led the way and the

          6  state has followed.  The state follows, and then

          7  they come up with a state law and then, of course,

          8  the City code is then obviated.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  We'll be in

         10  touch.  Bob, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  If there's no one

         12  else to testify on these items, we will close this

         13  Hearing, but before I do so, we'll lay all items on

         14  the Committee's agenda aside until further date, and

         15  then that would bring this Hearing to a conclusion.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:05 p.m.)
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